
Saddle Creek Community Services District 
1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA 95228 
(209) 785-0100 – www.saddlecreekcsd.org

DIRECTORS 
Darlene DeBaldo, President 

Roger Golden, Vice President 
Ken Albertson 
Larry Hoffman 

Don Kurtz 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
June 18, 2019 2:00 PM 

Saddle Creek Lodge 
1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes)

Members of the public are appreciated for taking the time to attend this meeting and provide comments on matters of District business.
Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be related to any
item on the agenda; however, the Board cannot act on an item unless it was noticed on the agenda.

6. CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items
unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion.

a) Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of May 2019.
b) Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held May 26, 2019.

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on
each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action.

a) Consideration of solutions and actions related to the storm drain odor occurring on Rockridge
b) Adoption of a Resolution approving a revised fee schedule including Engineering fee’s with 10%

administrative markup
c) Adoption of the 5-Year Road Maintenance Program and related annual improvements for the

purpose of final budget development
d) Adoption of a Resolution approving the Preliminary Budget for the 2019/2020 fiscal year effective

July 1, 2019, and set the date for a budget public hearing and final budget adoption
e) Consideration of draft terms and conditions of an Memorandum of Agreement/Understanding

with CV Partners, Inc. regarding equipment and property donations, joint operating expenses,
community common area maintenance responsibilities, utility costs and related expenses

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action will be
taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future agenda.

• General Manager’s Report
• Site Manager’s verbal report

9. ADJOURNMENT
Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Saddle Creek Pro Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin Board, in the viewing box 
outside the CSD main office and at the CSD Website typically three days preceding each meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting. 

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the CSD Clerk at 
(209) 785-0100. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure accessibility.

Page 1

http://www.saddlecreekcsd.org/
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bclip_id=353&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bmeta_id=18610


Saddle Creek Community Services District 
1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA 95228 
(209) 785-0100 – www.saddlecreekcsd.org 

DIRECTORS 
Darlene DeBaldo, President 

Roger Golden, Vice President 
Ken Albertson  
Larry Hoffman  

Don Kurtz 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

May 28, 2019 2:00 PM 
Saddle Creek SPORTS CENTER  

1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA 
   

1. CALL TO ORDER President DeBaldo, Vice President Golden, Director Golden, Director Kurtz, 
Director Abertson- ABSENT, Genral Manger Kampa, Board Clerk McCutchen, Site Supervisor 
McGeroge 

2. ROLL CALL  
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA-None 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
a) Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of April 2019. 
b) Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held April 16, 2019.  
Item c was pulled from the Consent Calendar.  Motion made by Director Hoffman to approve 
the consent calendar item a & b, second made by Director Golden, motion passes 
unanimously. 
c) Adoption of a Resolution Ratifying Agreement with Marks Seeding Services, Inc. for the Entrance 

Hydroseed Project.   
Motion made by Director Hoffman to approve the consent calendar item c, second made by 
Director Golden, motion passes unanimously. 

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may take action at this meeting. Public comment is allowed on 
each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action. 
d) Presentation, Review and Acceptance of the 2017/2018 Fiscal Year Audited Financial 

Statements.  Motion made by Director Hoffman to accept the review of the audited financial 
statements, second made by Director Golden, motion passes unanimously. 

a) Consideration of Approval of the Five Year Road Maintenance Plan and Direct Staff to Proceed 
with Planning, Design and Construction of the 2019/20 Projects. Motion made by Director 
Golden to accept the five year report with revisions, second made by Director Hoffman, 
motion passes unanimously. 

b) Review of the Preliminary Draft 2019/20 Fiscal Year Budget Planned for Adoption June 18,2019 
Motion made by Director Hoffman to prepare the preliminary draft 2019/20 fiscal year 
budget to evaluate funding the entire road project with a loan, and the effect on the 
budget of levying the special tax at the previously planned, lower rate, and schedule the 
budget for adoption June 18, 2019, second made by Director Golden, motion passes 
unanimously. 

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS: 
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action will be 
taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future agenda. 

• General Manager’s Report  
• Update on cost impact for more frequent updating of facebook and website 
• Update report on CSDA Legislative Action Days on May 21, 22, 2019 

Page 2

http://www.saddlecreekcsd.org/


• Site Manager’s verbal report 
• Meeting Agenda posting location installed outside guard shack  

9. ADJOURNMENT 4:02pm 
Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Saddle Creek Pro Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin Board, in the viewing box 
outside the CSD main office and at the CSD Website typically three days preceding each meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting. 

 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the CSD Clerk at 
(209) 785-0100. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure accessibility. 

Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Weed Abatement fee 75.00$      
Late payment Fee for Weed Abatement 25.00$      

Gate Key Card (each) 10.00$      
Gate Clicker (each) 50.00$      
Gate damage administrative fee 250.00$    
Gate damage repair costs At cost of repair

Encrochment permit fee 25.00$      
Easement encrochment administrative fee 100.00$    
Easement encrochment fine - 1st Offense 200.00$    
Easement encrochment fine - 2nd Offense 250.00$    
Surveryor fee for encroachment issues 500.00$    
Professional Fees such as Engineering, surveying or Legal At cost plus 10%

DRAFT

Saddle Creek Community Services District 2019-20 FEE 
SCHEDULE

Page 19



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Special Meeting of June 18, 2019 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
c) Adoption of the 5-Year Road Maintenance Program and related annual improvements for the 
purpose of final budget development 
 

Recommended Motion 
I move to approve the Five Year Road Maintenance Plan as amended 

Background 
The Board has directed the preparation of a five year road maintenance program and we have entered into 
contract with Willdan Engineering to conduct the analysis and prepare the report.  The draft five year road 
report was publicly distributed in mid-May 2019, and was reviewed and discussed in detail during the May 28, 
2019 special meeting.  Based on public and Board input, the draft report was revised for accuracy, clarity and 
to serve as an historical record of road management.   The revised final draft is attached herein for 
consideration.     
 
The plan, once adopted in conjunction with the annual budget, serves as the roadmap and funding for 
management to implement continuous improvements to the Saddle Creek roads.  If the plan is not adopted, 
staff seeks guidance from the Board on expectations for a modified prioritization model.       
  
 

Page 20



 

 

 

Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Five Year Capital Improvement Program – Street Repaving 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 2019 

 

Peter Rei, PE, PLS 

 

 

  

Page 21

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Table of Contents 

 

Title Page         1 

Table of Contents        2 

Executive Summary        3 

History of Past Road Maintenance      4 

Introduction         4 

2016 Pavement Condition Ratings      5 

2018 Repaving Project        5 

Comparison of Estimated costs from the 2016 Report     6 

Methods of Selecting Candidate Projects     7,8 

Recommended Project Selection Method      9 

Funding Available        10 

Five-Year 2019 Capital Improvement Program Recommendations 

2019 (Year 1)        11 
2020 (Year 2)        12 
2021 (Year 3)        13 
2022 (Year 4)        14 
2023 (Year 5)         15 
Remaining Roadways for future years      16 
Summary of Plan Recommendations     17 

 
Attachments         18 

1. Spreadsheet - Saddle Creek Subdivision, All Road Segments 
2. Spreadsheet – Saddle Creek Subdivision, Roadways by Neighborhood 

 
References          

1. Pavement Condition Assessment for Saddle Creek Community 
Services District, June 2016, Peter Rei, PE 

2. Technical Memorandum – Pavement Evaluation for Saddle Creek 
Resort, August 2006, Jon K. Lynch, PE 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Executive Summary 

This Capital Improvement Program is a further refinement of the Pavement Condition Assessment Report 
prepared for the District by Peter Rei in June 2016 and the Technical Memorandum entitled Pavement 
Evaluation for Saddle Creek Resort prepared by Jon K. Lynch in 2006.  

The 2006 Pavement Evaluation for Saddle Creek, prepared in 2006 by Jon K. Lynch PE, reported a 
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of 78 based on field observations of the pavement conditions at that time 
using the Metropolitan Transportation Commissions Street Saver program and rating methodology. 

This 2016 report was compiled from field Pavement Condition surveys of all Saddle Creek Community 
Services District subdivision roads performed in Spring 2016. The results of those 2016 field observations 
were also compiled using the Metropolitan Transportation Commissions Street Saver program and rating 
methodology.  

The 2016 Pavement Condition survey results indicated that the average PCI of the Saddle Creek 
Community Services District roadways at that time was 62 with 31.4 % of the roadways determined to be 
in Poor or Very Poor condition at the time of the field surveys in Spring 2016. This deterioration of the 
average PCI score from 78 in 2006 to 62 in 2016 indicates that the overall average condition of the 
District’s pavements, caused by an ongoing lack of maintenance, has now deteriorated to a level well 
below the desired average PCI of 80 to ensure that yearly maintenance costs are kept to a manageable 
level.  

The intent of this Five-Year Capital Improvement Program is to use the results of the Spring 2016 field 
observations of roadway conditions to provide recommendations for future pavement improvements 
beginning in 2019 and beyond. 

In Summer 2018 the District advertised a project which included the grinding and repaving of the Resort 
Entrance Road, the Resort Roundabout, the entire length of Saddle Creek Drive and a majority of Oak 
Creek Drive. Important takeaways from the 2018 project are: 

• The bids received were much higher than the Engineers Estimate. This is likely due to the fact that 
the project was advertised for bids during the busy summer construction season as opposed to 
the less busy winter season. Typically, winter season bids are lower as contractors are trying to 
determine their project schedules for the following construction season as opposed to attempting 
to add additional projects to an already busy workload in the summer. 

• Only 3 contractors submitted bids for the 2018 project.  
• Based on the pricing of the construction bids received by the District for the 2018 project it 

appears that the District can anticipate roadway construction costs at Saddle Creek being 
significantly higher than they are for similar projects in the Modesto/Stockton area. 

• Future project construction cost estimates are recommended to be based on the actual bid prices 
received in 2018 as these costs more accurately forecast what the District will likely pay for future 
pavement projects. 

Actual per square foot prices from the District’s 2018 Paving Project were used to calculate expected costs 
for future paving projects. These 2018 prices are then factored up by the following amounts to account 
for all costs that are included in the total construction cost: 

Page 23

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


• 20% for the cost of Traffic Control, Signing/Striping, Contractor Mobilization/Demobilization, 
Water Pollution Control requirements, Insurance, Bonding costs, etc. 

• 15% for project engineering including design and construction management. 
• 5% per year to account for inflation 

Using this approach, this report calculates that $1,330,242 (2019 dollars) is the total cost that would be 
expected if the entire project to repave all of the remaining roadways in the subdivision was planned to 
be done in 2019.  

Yearly project recommendations can be found in the body of the report starting at page 10, with a Five- 
Year Summary on page 16.  

Spreadsheets listing the Pavement Condition Index for each roadway within the subdivision, and total 
estimates by neighborhood can be found in the attachments. 

History of Past Road Maintenance 

Until 2018, Castle & Cooke (C&C) maintained ownership of the resort and had plans for additional land 
development in the area.  C&C had made numerous verbal commitments to the District to make repairs 
and improvements to the community roads, but the economic/housing downturn of the mid 2000’s 
resulted in stalled development plans and lack of investment in road maintenance by C&C.  The first 
pavement report was completed in 2006 to establish a firm negotiating position with C&C regarding the 
need to maintain the roads; however, they made no investments.  Beginning in 2015, following 
continued deterioration of the roads, the District commissioned an update of the pavement report to 
begin establishing financial and implementation plans for improvements.  The report was completed by 
the District in 2016 and Measure A special tax proposal developed soon thereafter to fund road and 
other service improvements. 

Introduction 

At the request of the Saddle Creek Community Services District Board of Directors Willdan Engineering is 
pleased to provide the District with this Five-Year Capital Improvement Program for the resurfacing of the 
Districts roadways. This Capital Improvement Program is a further refinement of the Pavement Condition 
Assessment Report prepared for the District by Peter Rei in June 2016 and the Technical Memorandum 
entitled Pavement Evaluation for Saddle Creek Resort prepared by Jon W. Lynch in 2006. 

The 2016 report was compiled from field Pavement Condition surveys of all Saddle Creek Community 
Services District subdivision roads performed in Spring 2016. The goal of the 2016 Report was to provide 
the District Board of Directors with estimates of the cost to bring all of the District’s roadways up to a 
minimum Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of 80.  

The results of the 2016 Report were then used by District staff to create Roadway Assessment, to be voted 
upon by the residents, in order to raise the funds to pay for the anticipated costs. That Assessment was 
approved by the residents in May 2017.  

Following the approval of the Assessment Willdan Engineering was retained to assist the District in the 
design and construction of pavement improvements for the first year of the Assessment. Those 
improvements included the grinding and repaving of the Resort Entrance Road, the Resort Roundabout, 

Page 24

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


the entire length of Saddle Creek Drive and a majority of Oak Creek Drive in Summer 2018. This Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Program is intended to provide recommendations for future pavement 
improvements beginning in 2019 and beyond. 

2016 Pavement Condition Ratings 

The 2016 Pavement Condition survey results indicated that the average PCI of the Saddle Creek 
Community Services District roadways at that time was 62 with 31.4 % of the roadways determined to be 
in Poor or Very Poor condition at the time of the field surveys in Spring 2016. This indicates that the 
District’s roadways are well below the desired average PCI of 80 to ensure that yearly maintenance costs 
are kept to a manageable level.  The primary reason for the lower average PCI score was the lack of routine 
maintenance of the District’s roadways since they were originally constructed beginning with the 
construction of Resort Entrance Road, the Resort Roundabout, the entire length of Saddle Creek Drive and 
Oak Creek Drive in 1995. Various phases of the subdivision have continued to be built since 1995 with the 
most recent roadway construction being the Quail Ridge neighborhood in 2014. 

The 2016 Report utilized the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Pavement Analysis tool to 
calculate the expected cost to improve the average PCI score for the District’s roadways from 62 to a 
minimum of 80. The estimate determined that it will require approximately $560,000 in 2016 dollars to 
result in the desired improvement in the average PCI. The $560,000 estimate was based on the cost of 
construction for the actual pavements and did not include the additional costs of engineering, contractor 
mobilization and profit, restriping and other associated costs. 

2018 Repaving Project 

The 2018 Repaving Project was the first roadway construction project to utilize Measure A funds. 
Following discussion with District staff Willdan was instructed to prepare a project which included the 
grinding and repaving of the Resort Entrance Road, the Resort Roundabout, the entire length of Saddle 
Creek Drive and a majority of Oak Creek Drive. The reason for the selection of these roadways for the first 
project was that they are the main roadways within the subdivision. These roadways carry more traffic, 
and experience more heavy truck loads than any other roadways. They also provide the access to all 
neighborhoods for residents of the District and also to the resort for guests.  

In addition, the remaining portion of Oak Creek Drive was selected to receive a Microsurfacing treatment. 
The estimated cost by Willdan Engineering of the project was $533,130.00. This estimate was based on 
recent projects of a similar nature constructed in the San Joaquin Valley area. The District received three 
bids. The lowest bid was submitted by T&S West out of Stockton at $726,330.00.  

Following receipt of that bid Willdan Staff and representatives of T&S jointly performed a “value 
engineering” of the project plans and specifications. The intent of the value engineering effort was to 
determine if there were any changes to the project that the contractor could identify which could reduce 
the cost of the project without sacrificing the quality of the project or the long-term performance of the 
roadway improvements. Specific items that were identified were elimination of a leveling course prior to 
construction of the final overlay, replacement of the specified pavement fabric and oil with less expensive 
, and more readily available alternatives and elimination of the need to adjust a sewer manhole following 
construction. Using the results of the value engineering effort the contractor and the District were able to 

Page 25

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


agree on a reduction of $123,540 from the original bid price which reduced the project cost to $602,790. 
The contract was then awarded by the District to T&S for $602,790. 

During the design phase of the project District maintenance staff identified an historic drainage problem 
on Oak Creek Drive. Willdan was directed by the District to include a bid item in the project to address 
what was believed by District staff to be a 20 foot stretch of clogged storm drain pipe. In their bid T&S 
identified a cost of $9,000 to dig up and replace 20 feet of damaged storm drain pipe. 

After construction of the project commenced the contractor dug up the area identified and discovered 
that the drainage problem was much larger than District staff originally believed. During the original 
construction of the subdivision it appears that approximately 140 feet of the storm drain pipe on Oak 
Creek Drive was crushed, causing frequent flooding problems in the immediate area during heavy 
rainstorms. The replacement of this crushed drainage pipe, along with a few other minor discoveries 
required an additional $146,373.00 to the cost of the project.  

Due to this large increase in cost a second value engineering effort was initiated with T&S to find an 
acceptable way to reduce the cost closer to the District’s budgeted resources. That second value 
engineering effort further modified the original scope of the project by removing paving fabric from the 
Resort Roundabout, removing the Microsurfacing for a portion of Oak Creek Drive, and reducing the 
amount of dig-outs of failed pavement in some areas. 

Important takeaways from the 2018 project are: 

• Only 3 contractors submitted bids for the 2018 project. This is likely due to the strong economy 
resulting in many paving contractors being very busy and the fact that the project was advertised 
during the busy summer construction season when most contractors already had a full program 
of projects for the year. 

• Based on the pricing of the construction bids received by the District for the 2018 project it 
appears that the District can anticipate roadway construction costs at Saddle Creek being 
significantly higher than they are for similar projects in the Modesto/Stockton area. 

• Unanticipated stormdrain repairs diverted a large amount of funding originally slated for roadway 
resurfacing to repair the drainage problems. 

• The reduction of pavement fabric and the reduction in the amount of failed pavement to be dug 
out prior to the new pavement being constructed, in order to help reduce the cost of the project 
may have contributed to some premature pavement cracking in the Resort Roundabout area. 

• Future project construction cost estimates are recommended to be based on the actual bid prices 
received in 2018 as these costs more accurately forecast what the District will likely pay for future 
pavement projects, and not on MTC program estimates. 
 

Comparison of the Estimated costs from the 2016 Report and the 2019 Five Year Capital 
Improvement Program 

Estimated Construction Costs 

Based on the lessons learned from the 2018 Pavement contract Willdan staff revised the method used to 
estimate the construction costs for future pavement restoration projects. The revised approach continues 

Page 26

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


to utilize the Pavement Condition ratings observed from the field investigations performed in Spring 2016 
as the basis for what the appropriate treatment for each individual roadway segment should be. However, 
instead of using the MTC program estimates of cost as was done in the 2016 Pavement Report, the Five-
Year Capital Improvement Program uses actual per square foot bid prices received by the District for the 
resurfacing project on Saddle Creek Drive and Oak Creek Drive in Summer 2018. These actual per square 
foot prices are then factored up by the following amounts to account for all costs that are included in the 
total construction cost: 

• 20% for the cost of Traffic Control, Signing/Striping, Contractor Mobilization/Demobilization, 
Water Pollution Control requirements, Insurance, Bonding costs, etc. 

• 15% for project engineering including design and construction management. 
• 5% per year to account for inflation 

Using this approach, $1,330,242 (2019 dollars) is the total cost that would be expected if the entire 
project to repave all of the remaining roadways in the subdivision was planned to be done in 2019.  

It is important to note that this 2019 estimate cannot be directly compared to the $560,000 estimate in 
the 2016 report. The 2016 Report Estimate was aimed at determining how much funding would be 
necessary to improve the PCI from an average of 62 in 2016 to an average of 80 at some point in the 
future. By contrast, the 2019 estimate is the total cost that would be expected if the entire project to 
repave all of the roadways in the subdivision was done this year. If that were to actually occur the average 
PCI for the subdivision would be very close to 100 due to all of the roadways being newly resurfaced, as 
opposed to the average PCI of 80 in the 2016 Report.  

It is not anticipated that construction of all roads in this year will actually occur. However, the $1,330,242 
figure is a useful measure, using 2018 actual bid prices as the basis, to better estimate the total amount 
of deferred maintenance for all roadways within the subdivision. 

Methods of Selecting Candidate Projects 

There is no one correct way to address the process of selecting roadways for the first five years of the 
Capital Improvement Program. There are several factors to be considered when trying to prioritize 
roadway investments. Some examples of these factors are: 

• The amount of current year and future year budgetary resources available 
• The overall volume of traffic experienced by a particular roadway as opposed to another 
• The volume of heavy loads that a roadway will experience (propane trucks, garbage trucks, 

construction vehicles)  
• Special usages of a particular roadway (Access to maintenance facilities, propane farms etc.) 
• The age of the roadway 
• Past roadway maintenance history 
• The specific types of roadway distress that are observed (cracking, rutting, potholes, etc.) 
• The relative cost of the various potential roadway treatments 
• Construction related issues for the contractor 
• Balancing short term improvements vs. long term maintenance costs following construction 
• Minimizing disruption and inconvenience to residents during construction 

Page 27

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


 

 

 

 

Listed below are a few of the most common approaches which local agencies use to select projects: 

1. “Worst First” Project Selection 

This approach favors spending the majority of available yearly financial resources to repair the roadways 
with the most severe damage and the lowest PCI ratings. 

Advantages of this approach 

The primary advantage of this approach is the long overdue repair of badly deteriorated roadways.  

Disadvantages of this approach 

Due to the advanced deterioration of older, heavily damaged roadways the cost per square foot to 
reconstruct these roadways is very high. Focusing all, or a large amount, of available yearly paving 
resources on heavily damaged roadways results in a much lower amount of square footage of roadways 
repaired as compared with allocating the same amount of available yearly paving resources for a 
preventative treatment on a much larger amount of square footage for roadways with less severe 
problems.  

At the same time, when less severely damaged roadways are made to wait longer for life-extending 
treatments the slow deterioration of those roadways will continue. This delay leads to higher future costs 
to repair those less damaged roadways as compared to current costs, due to the advanced level of 
deterioration over time.  

By contrast, a severely damaged roadway costs essentially the same amount to repair now as it will in the 
future as the deterioration has already progressed to a point where much greater (and more expensive) 
repavement treatments are required to bring the surface back up to desired standards. 

A useful analogy is to consider is the life expectancy of a vehicle which receives regular maintenance as 
compared to a vehicle which does not. The cost of repairing, or completely replacing, the vehicle that does 
not receive regular maintenance is very high. By contrast, the cost to perform regular maintenance of a 
vehicle keeps the vehicle in good operating condition for a much longer period of time and at a reduced 
overall long-term cost. The same principle applies to roadways. 

2.  “Most Long-Term Cost-Effective” Project Selection 

Advantages of this approach 

This approach to project selection relies on the savings experienced by fixing a roadway in fair to good 
condition before it deteriorates to a point where more costly repairs are necessary. Rigid application of 
this method of project selection reduces the long-term overall cost of projects constructed to the lowest 
possible amount. 

Page 28

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Disadvantages of this approach 

Due to the focus on reducing long-term maintenance costs the roadway projects selected using this 
approach will often not address badly damaged roadways as the best use of funding, particularly if there 
are roadways that are other roadways that are just beginning to show deterioration. These roadways can 
be improved with seal coat and Microsurfacing projects which will extend their life for a much lower per 
square foot cost. This allows the same amount of funding to treat a much larger surface area for any given 
yearly project.  

However, this approach may also be difficult politically for residents who have badly damaged roadways 
who have to wait longer for repairs to their roadway to understand and accept if the selected treatment 
for that particular year is not complete reconstruction of badly damaged roadways. 

3. “Similar Treatment” Project Selection  

Advantages of this approach 

This method of project selection favors the grouping of multiple roadway locations that need the same 
type of roadway treatment into a combined project for a specific yearly project. Doing so reduces the 
variety of the work that the contractor is required to perform, and also helps to reduce the contractor’s 
mobilization costs by focusing on one type of roadway treatment for an entire project for that particular 
year. 

Disadvantages of this approach 

This approach may also be difficult politically for residents who have badly damaged roadways who have 
to wait longer for repairs to their roadway to understand and accept if the selected treatment for that 
particular year is not complete reconstruction of badly damaged roadways. 

4. “Specified Yearly Percentage Combination” of the other Project Selection Methods 

Advantages of this approach 

Many agencies opt to combine several of the above approaches to Project Selection in order to provide a 
good overall cost-effective program, but also make some progress on the most damaged roadways at the 
same time. It is common to split the funding using 60% of available yearly funding for pavement 
maintenance treatments (seals and microsurfacing projects which prolong the life of roadways that are in 
good shape overall but need a treatment to prolong their life) and 40% for pavement reconstruction 
treatments for badly damaged roadways (grind, dig-out and replace projects). Each agency may have a 
different ratio between the two objectives, but the intent is to try to make progress on both needs 
simultaneously. 

Disadvantages of this approach 

As with some of the other approaches this method of project selection may delay needed reconstruction 
efforts on badly damaged roadways in favor of spending some of the resources on life-extending 
treatments for roadways that are less damaged. 

 

Page 29

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Recommended Project Selection Method for the Five-Year 2019 Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Program 

Willdan Engineering recommends the District select the “Similar Treatment” project selection method 
described above. It is clearly important to maximize the cost-effective use of the funding that the District 
receives for the resident’s Roadway Assessment dollars. However, it is equally important that the type of 
project being constructed in any one year be the same type of treatment to reduce the increased cost of 
contractor mobilization which is required when multiple treatments are to be constructed as part of the 
same contract.  

Willdan also recommends that projects be grouped by neighborhood if at all possible. Doing so provides 
an area-wide improvement to an entire neighborhood at one time. This approach also isolates the 
disturbance to residents of other neighborhoods during construction as the work is only occurring in one 
neighborhood for that construction season. 

Funding Available 

It is Willdan’s understanding that the amount of funding that the District is able to utilize on a yearly basis 
is approximately $130,000 per year. This amount of funding will definitely make a positive difference in 
improving the conditions of the pavements within the subdivision, however it is not large enough to cover 
the cost of pavement replacement costs for both badly damaged roadways and the life-extending 
maintenance treatments for less damaged roadways in the same year unless augmented with other 
resources. 

If possible, Willdan recommends that the District consider ways to allocate additional funding on a yearly 
basis. This will allow projects to be completed for an entire neighborhood in a single year. As the size and 
area of pavement for each neighborhood is different the costs vary considerably from neighborhood to 
neighborhood in order to create only one project. This will mean finding funding in an amount greater 
than $130,000 for some of the yearly projects. 

  

Page 30

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Five-Year 2019 Capital Improvement Program Recommendations 

2019 (Year 1) 

Recommended Base Project:  

Microsurfacing of the entire length of Knolls Drive (2016 PCI = 77) 

Area to be Treated (base project): 139,300 square feet (11.2% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $123,751 (2019 $) 
 
Recommended Expanded Project:  
 
Recommended Base Project and addition of the following roadways: 
 
Microsurfacing of Knolls Court (2016 PCI = 71) 
Microsurfacing of Mossy Woods Court (2016 PCI = 77) 
Microsurfacing of Vista Knolls Court (2016 PCI = 76) 
Microsurfacing of Wildflower Court (2016 PCI = 73) 
Microsurfacing of Mitchell Lake Lane (2016 PCI = 74) 
Microsurfacing of Mitchell Lake Court (2016 PCI = 70) 
 
Area to be Treated (expanded project): 246,000 square feet (17.0% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost with all Courts: $219,340 (2019 $) 
 
Rationale for the selected project: 

• The Knolls and The Cottages are two of the oldest neighborhoods in the Saddle Creek 
development. District staff indicate that they were built in 1998. 

• The roadways, including courts, in the Knolls neighborhood had an average PCI of 75 in 2016.  
• The roadways, including Mitchell Lane Court in the Cottages neighborhood had an average PCI of 

72 in 2016. These PCI ratings have now deteriorated in the past three years somewhat. PCI’s of 
less than 80 indicate a roadway that will begin to deteriorate at a faster pace, with an increased 
cost to repair that accelerated deterioration at a later date. A Microsurfacing treatment at this 
time will avoid additional costly repaving if the roadways continue to deteriorate. 

• Completing all of the re-surfacing for both neighborhoods will localize the construction and 
reduce the inconvenience to subdivision residents who do not live in these two neighborhoods. 

 
  

Page 31

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Five-Year 2019 Capital Improvement Street Repaving Program Recommendations 

2020 (Year 2) 
 

Recommended Base Project:  

Complete Resurfacing of Hawkridge Drive from the 1995 end of road to Oak Creek Drive (2016 PCI = 51) 
Complete Resurfacing of Redtail Court (2016 PCI = 53) 
Complete Resurfacing of Falcon Court (2016 PCI = 74) 
 

Area to be Treated (base project): 39,860 square feet (3.2% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $109,326 (2019 $) 
 
Recommended Expanded Project:  
 
Recommended Base Project and addition of the following roadways: 
 
Complete Resurfacing of Blue Oak Court (2016 PCI = 50) 
Complete Resurfacing of White Oak Court (2016 PCI = 45) 
 
Area to be Treated (expanded project): 62,060 square feet (5.0% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $170,215 (2019 $) 
 

Rationale for the selected project: 
• The portion of Hawkridge Drive, Red Tail Court, Falcon Court, Blue Oak Court and White Oak 

Court are some of the oldest roadways in the Saddle Creek development. District staff indicate 
that they were built in 1995 as part of the original construction of Oak Creek Drive. 

• The portion of Hawkridge Drive, Red Tail Court and Falcon Court roadways had an average PCI of 
41 in 2016.  

• There is evidence of considerable “alligator cracking” on several portions of the roadway. This 
indicates a failure in the base layer supporting the asphalt surface above. This roadway has 
deteriorated to the point that a Microsurfacing is no longer the recommended treatment and a 
grinding of the pavement along with selected dig-outs and repaving is necessary to bring the 
roadway back up to desired standards. 

  

Page 32

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Five-Year 2019 Capital Improvement Street Repaving Program Recommendations 

2021 (Year 3) 
 
Recommended Project: 
 
 
Microsurfacing of the portion of Oak Creek Drive that was deleted from the 2018 project (2016 PCI = 80) 
Microsurfacing of Oakwood Place to Old Cul-De-Sac (beginning of Hawkridge Drive) (2016 PCI = 81) 
Microsurfacing of Oakwood Court (2016 PCI = 83) 
Microsurfacing of Falling Leaf Lane (2016 PCI = 81) 
Microsurfacing of Leaf Crest Court (2016 PCI = 82) 
 
Area to be treated: 150,100 square feet (12.1% of entire subdivision paved area). 
Estimated Total Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $133,345 
 
Rationale for the selected project: 

• The Oakwood neighborhood was constructed in 2004 according to District staff. 
• The roadways, including courts, in the Oakwood neighborhood had an average PCI of 81 in 2016. 

A Microsurfacing treatment at this time will avoid additional costly repaving if the roadways 
continue to deteriorate. 

• Completing all of the re-surfacing for  only this neighborhood will localize the construction and 
reduce the inconvenience to subdivision residents who do not live in this specific neighborhood. 

  

Page 33

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Five-Year 2019 Capital Improvement Street Repaving Program Recommendations 

2022 (Year 4) 

Recommended Base Project:  

Complete Resurfacing of the entire length of Rockridge Lane (2016 PCI = 44) 

Area to be Treated (base project): 79,700 square feet (6.4% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $218,597 (2019 $) 
 
Recommended Expanded Project:  
 
Recommended Base Project and addition of the following roadways: 
 
Complete Resurfacing of Rockridge Court (2016 PCI = 26) 
Complete Resurfacing of Quail Meadows Court (2016 PCI = 53) 
Microsurfacing of Quail Meadows Lane (2016 PCI = 76) 
Microsurfacing of Pebble Court (2016 PCI = 85) 
 
Area to be Treated (expanded project): 135,900 square feet (11.0% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $313,771 (2019 $) 
 

Rationale for the selected project: 
• The Rockridge neighborhood is one the oldest neighborhoods in the Saddle Creek development. 

District staff indicate that it was built in 2001. 
• The roadways, including courts, in the Rockridge neighborhood had an average PCI of 41 in 

2016.  
• There is evidence of considerable “alligator cracking” on several portions of the roadway. This 

indicates a failure in the base layer supporting the asphalt surface above. This roadway has 
deteriorated to the point that a Microsurfacing is no longer the recommended treatment and a 
grinding of the pavement along with selected dig-outs and repaving is necessary to bring the 
roadway back up to desired standards. 

 

  

Page 34

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Five-Year 2019 Capital Improvement Street Repaving Program Recommendations 

2023 (Year 5) 

Recommended Base Project:  Microsurfacing of Saddle Creek Lane (2016 PCI = 74) 
    Microsurfacing of Glen Side Court (2016 PCI = 81) 

   Microsurfacing of Glen View Court (2016 PCI = 68) 
   Complete resurfacing of Copper Glen Terrace (2016 PCI = 42) 
   Complete resurfacing of Copper Glen Court (2016 PCI = 55) 

 
 
Area to be Treated (base project): 106,500 square feet (8.6% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $144,495 (2019 $) 
 
Recommended Expanded Project:  
Recommended Base Project and addition of the following roadways: 
 
Cape Seal of Entry Road 
Cape Seal of Resort Roundabout 
Cape Seal of Saddle Creek Drive 
Cape Seal of Oak Creek Drive 
 
Area to be Treated (expanded project): 396,500 square feet 32.0% of entire subdivision paved area) 
Estimated Construction Cost (including supplemental, inflation and engineering): $311,245 (2019 $) 
 

Rationale for the selected project: 
 

• District staff indicate that the Glens neighborhood was built in 2001. While many of the other 
neighborhoods are older than the Glens, the roadways are beginning to show their age. 

• The Entry Road, Resort Roundabout, Saddle Creek Drive and Oak Creek Drive roadways were 
resurfaced in 2018. In 2013 they will have been in place for 5 years. It is strongly recommended 
that a seal coat be applied every 5 years on all resurfaced roadways to help prolong their useful 
life and prevent more costly resurfacing from being required. 

  

Page 35

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Remaining Roadways for future years 

 

Year          Year Built Area Treated Estimated Cost (2019 $) 

Grandview Court (2016 PCI = 75)             1995 6,800 sq. ft.  $   6,041 (Microsurfacing)**  
Flagstone Court  (2016 PCI = 61)               1995 5,900 sq. ft.  $ 16,182 (Grind and Replace) 
Greenstone Court (2016 PCI = 51)            1995 11,500 sq. ft.  $ 31,542 (Grind and Replace) 
Wood Duck Court (2016 PCI = 51)           1995 8,100 sq. ft.  $ 22,216 (Grind and Replace)  
Summit Lane (2016 PCI = 54)               2001 32,900 sq. ft.  $ 90,236 (Grind and Replace) 
Summit Court (2016 PCI = 53)               2001 11,400 sq. ft.   $ 31,267 (Grind and Replace) 
Hawkridge Drive (Newer Part) (2016 PCI = 81)  2011 99,040 sq. ft.   $ 87,985 (Microsurfacing)** 
Hawkridge Court (2016 PCI = 82)              2011 15,400 sq. ft.  $ 13,681 (Microsurfacing)** 
Quail Creek Drive (2016 PCI = 82)                        2014 50,000 sq. ft.   $ 44,419 (Microsurfacing)** 
Quail Covey Court (2016 PCI = 82)   2014 6,200 sq. ft.  $   5,508 (Microsurfacing)** 
 

Total Roadways Untreated   247,240 sq. ft. (20.0%)   $349,077 
In first 5 Years 
 
**  Specific treatment for these roadways needs to be re-evaluated prior to placement of 

Microsurfacing in future years to ensure that this is still the appropriate treatment for the 
roadway based on additional pavement deterioration over time. 

 

  

Page 36

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Summary of Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan Recommendations 

 

Year  Neighborhood     Year Built Area Treated  Estimated Cost (2019 $) 

2018 (Year 0) Main Roads           1995 290,000 sq. ft. (23.4%)  Completed 

2019 (Year 1) Knolls            1998 246,900 sq. ft. (19.9%)  $219,340 

2020 (Year 2) Upper Hawkridge       1995 62,060 sq. ft. (5.0%)  $170,215 

2021 (Year 3) Oakwood           2004 150,100 sq. ft. (12.1%)  $133,345 

2022 (Year 4) Rockridge           2001 135,900 sq. ft. (11.0%)  $313,771  

2023 (year 5) Glens            2007 106,500 sq. ft. (8.6%)  $144,495 (base project) 

Sub -Total Roadways Treated   1,017,600 sq. ft. (80.0%) $981,165 

Sub-Total Roadways Untreated   247,240 sq. ft. (20.0%)   $349,077 
 
Total      1,268,740 sq. ft. (100.0%) $1,330,242 
  

Page 37

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


Attachments 
 
 

Page 38

https://www.facebook.com/saddlecreekcsd/photos/a.561543244053110/561543737386394/?type=3


 
 

AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
d) Adoption of a Resolution approving the Preliminary Budget for the 2019/2020 fiscal year 

effective July 1, 2019, and set the date for a budget public hearing and final budget 
adoption 

 
Recommended Motion 
Staff recommends adoption of a Resolution approving the Preliminary Budget for the 2019/2020 fiscal 
year effective July 1, 2019, and set the date for a budget public hearing and final budget adoption 
Background 
During the May Board meeting, the Board of Directors reviewed a preliminary draft of the 2019/20 
fiscal year budget. Following significant discussion, direction was given to staff to provide alternative 
funding scenarios to balance the budget and provide the desired level of revenue and services. In 
addition, staff was directed to evaluate the cost and opportunities to fund the entire 5 year project with a 
loan, and to prepare a budget option with the special tax levy at the planned amount of the existing 
special tax rate, increased by the cost of living index, plus $100. 
Due to the major decisions remaining to adopt a final budget and the legally required timeline of budget 
adoption prior to July 1, staff recommends adoption of a Preliminary budget at this meeting, and to set a 
public hearing date for adoption of the final budget in July 2019. 
Included herein is the draft Preliminary 2019/2020 budget, assuming the levy of the special tax at 
$1750 per residential parcel and multiplier thereof for non-residential. We evaluated the budgetary 
impact of levying the special tax at the three different rates identified in the tables below: 

Land Use Category Option 1 Rates Option 2 Rates Option 3 Rates 
Residential Lot $1,578.88 $1,750.00 $1,832.00 
Large Lot Undeveloped 
Property 

 
667.50 

 
739.85 

 
774.52 

Sports Club Property 593.34 657.65 688.47 
Golf Course Property 59,205.67 65,622.42 68,697.30 

 

Land Use Category Option 1 Total 
Levy Amounts 

Option 2 Total 
Levy Amounts 

Option 3 Total 
Levy Amounts 

Golf Course Property $59,205.67 $65,622.42 $68,697.30 
Large Lot Undeveloped 
Property 

 
177,508.25 

 
196,748.26 

 
205,968.04 

Residential Lot 884,172.80 980,000.00 1,025,920.00 
Sports Club Property 1,869.02 2,071.59 2,168.68 
Grand Total $1,122,755.74 $1,244,442.27 $1,302,754.02 

 
 

Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Board Meeting June 18, 2019 

Page 39



Based on the amount of revenue generated under each scenario above, we evaluated the estimated amount of 
total funding available under each scenario when the same amount of operating expenses are deducted from 
available revenue.  The table below identifies the amount of funding needed annually to pay the estimated 
debt service if we were to fund the entire estimated project in 2020, or if we were to fund the work out of our 
annual cash on an equal basis over a six year period (five plus the remaining roads in year six).  The 
evaluation assumes a 5% construction cost increase from 2019 to 2020, and a 10% contingency has been 
added for safety.   

 

Option 1 ($1579) does not provide adequate funding for debt service for the total project, to fund the 
average annual cash for pay-as-you-go, or cove the cost of the recommended first year expended project (as 
detailed in the 5-year report).  Option 1 would provide adequate cash to fund the first year base project, with 
no contingency.  Option 1 provides no funding for contingencies or infrastructure reserves.   

Option 2 ($1750) provides adequate funding for debt service for the entire project, assuming we can secure 
a loan at terms comparable to 2018.  Option 2 also provides nearly enough funding for the 6-year average 
cash Pay/Go alternative, and covers the estimated cost of the first year expanded project with an acceptable 
contingency.  Option 2 appears to allow cash funding of the projects on an annual basis, thus saving an 
estimated $300,000 in interest costs.  Option 2 provides adequate funding for contingencies and if 
reasonable loan funding is found for the total project, will provide cash for infrastructure/road reserves.  

Option 3 ($1832) is the maximum allowable levy rate for the 2019/20 year, and provides adequate funding 
for debt service for the entire project, the 6-year average cash Pay/Go alternative, and covers the estimated 
cost of each year’s expanded project with an acceptable contingency.  Option 3 allows cash funding of the 
projects on an annual basis, thus saving an estimated $300,000 in interest costs.  Option 3 provides adequate 
funding for contingencies and will provide cash for infrastructure/road and/or landscape improvement 
reserves.  

 
Based on the priorities of the District and intent of Measure A, staff recommends levy of the special tax 
at Option 2 ($1750) in 2019/20 and to secure firm loan quotes and conditions while we are completing 
the engineering design for the entire project in the upcoming fiscal year.  In consideration of this 
recommendation, the agenda materials include a revised 2019/2020 budget proposal that includes levy 
of the Measure A Special Tax at the rate of $1750.    

1,330,242$                 
1,396,754$                 
1,536,430$                 

184,000$                    
256,072$                    

Debt Pay As You Go
Measure A 
Levy Rate

Total Revenue 
Available**

Revenue Over 
(Under) Expenses

Revenue Over 
(Under) Expenses 

 $              1,579 121,880$               (62,120)$                     (134,192)$                   
 $              1,750 243,621$               59,621$                      (12,451)$                     
 $              1,832 301,878$               117,878$                    45,806$                      

** Revenue available for roads and infrastructure reserves

Full Road Project Estimated Cost 2019
Full Road Project Estimated Cost 2020

Contingency 10%
Debt Payment (10 years @ 3.4%)

Pay as You Go (6 years)

Page 40



Saddle Creek Community Services District
 2019-20 Proposed BUDGET  WORKSHEET

6/15/2019

Budget
Projected 
Actuals                

6-30-2019

Proposed 
BUDGET

Proposed 
Change Proposed Change Notes

Income
   IN01 Assessments 1,025,500.00 975,684.10 1,244,497 218,997.00 Proposed levy at $1750 per parcel 
   IN05 Interest Income 2,766.00 2,900 2,900.00 

   IN06 Interest - County 0.00 0 0.00 

   IN07 Rebates Received 1,268.40 1,300 1,300.00 

   IN30 Expense Reimbursement Revenue 7,700.00 928.80 1,000 (6,700.00)

   IN41 Gate Opener Income 684.00 700 700.00 

   IN59 Other Misc. Revenue 3,000.00 0.00 0 (3,000.00)
   Services 15,060.00 15,800 15,800.00 

TOTAL INCOME  $     1,036,200.00  $       996,391.30  $1,266,197.00  $      229,997.00 

`

Expenses
Services & Supplies
Administrative Expenses

      OE01 Audit Expense 11,700.00 11,500.00 8,000 (3,700) Based on prior Audits, prior to last one
      OE02 Finance Expenses 600.00 469.20 500 (100)

      OE02-1 Financial Assessment (NBS) 5,500.00 5,224.80 5,500 0 

      OE03 Advertising 500.00 453.60 500 0 

      OE04 Legal Expenses 1,700.00 1,800.00 1,900 200 

      OE05 Management Fees 69,400.00 76,316.40 77,000 7,600 

      OE41 HR Consultant 6,000.00 7,680.00 6,000 0 

      OE06 Insurance (Prop Loss & Liab) 9,500.00 10,169.15 10,700 1,200 

      OE07 Miscellaneous/Contingency 8,000.00 3,826.80 4,000 (4,000)

      OE08 Professional Development 11,000.00 11,746.80 12,300 1,300 

      OE09 Dues, Certs, Bonds & Subscriptions 7,300.00 5,139.60 5,400 (1,900)

      OE10 Uniform Expense 3,000.00 3,666.00 3,800 800 

      OE11 Electric Power/Water/Sewer 5,800.00 12,474.00 13,100 7,300 Saddle Creek II Agreement + office
      OE12 Telephone & Internet 6,000.00 6,747.60 7,100 1,100 

      OE14 Office Supplies/Postage 5,700.00 5,550.00 5,800 100.00 

      OE15 Office Equipment Repair/Replace 8,000.00 7,561.20 7,900 (100.00)

6/15/2019 1 of 4 Draft 2019-20 Preliminary BudgetPage 41



Saddle Creek Community Services District
 2019-20 Proposed BUDGET  WORKSHEET

6/15/2019

Budget
Projected 
Actuals                

6-30-2019

Proposed 
BUDGET

Proposed 
Change Proposed Change Notes

       OE21 Office Equipment Lease 2,700.00 2,529.60 2,700 0.00 

       OE26 County Fees/LAFCO 10,500.00 6,722.40 7,100 (3,400.00)

       Accounting Services 0.00 21,600 21,600.00 $1,800 monthly fees
      OE30 Reimbursable Maintenance Exp 3,000.00 828.00 900 (2,100.00)

      Total Administrative Expenses  $        175,900.00 180,405.15 55%  $   201,800.00  $        25,900.00 

      Common Areas

      OE16 Gate Maint/Repair/Staff/Openers 18,400.00 21,942.00 23,000.00 4,600.00 

      OE18 Landscape Supplies & Repairs 29,900.00 35,612.40 37,400.00 7,500.00 

      OE18-3 Landscape Equip Gas & Oil 5,500.00 7,261.20 12,500.00 7,000.00 SCCSD to begin paying for fuel

      OE18-4 Landscape Equipment Repair & Replacement 17,500.00 17,523.60 18,400.00 900.00 

      Total Common Areas  $          71,300.00 82,339.20 25%  $     91,300.00  $        20,000.00 

   OE22 Mosquito Abatement Expense

      OE22-1 Mosquito Control Products 16,000.00 18,066.00 19,000.00 3,000.00 

      OE22-2 Mosquito Abatement Monitor/Test 3,800.00 3,831.60 4,000.00 200.00 

      OE22-3 Mosquito Abate Vehicles Gas/Oil 11,600.00 10,773.60 18,600.00 7,000.00 SCCSD to begin paying for fuel
      OE22-4 Mosquito Abatement Equip Maint 9,200.00 7,620.00 8,000.00 (1,200.00)

   Total OE22 Mosquito Abatement Expense  $          40,600.00 40,291.20 13%  $     49,600.00  $          9,000.00 

      Total OE17 Streets  $          11,100.00  $        23,574.00 7%  $     24,800.00  $        13,700.00 

Total Services & Supplies  $        298,900.00  $       326,609.55 100%  $   367,500.00  $        68,600.00 

   PE Personnel Expense
      PE01 Workers' Compensation Insurance 14,700.00 13,288.47 17,600.00 2,900.00 See Payroll Info Worksheet
      PE02 Health Insurance 73,800.00 48,661.20 75,900.00 2,100.00 See Payroll Info Worksheet
      PE03 Payroll Taxes 28,600.00 32,283.60 27,600.00 (1,000.00) 8% of projected wages
      PE04 Processing Fees 1,900.00 1,735.20 1,800.00 (100.00) Actual plus 5%
      PE05 Directors' Stipend 6,000.00 7,800.00 6,000.00 0.00 See Payroll Info Worksheet
      PE06 Employee Wages 351,400.00 349,887.60 344,800.00 (6,600.00) See Payroll Info Worksheet

Total Salaries & Benefits  $        476,400.00  $       453,656.07  $   473,700.00  $         (2,700.00)

6/15/2019 2 of 4 Draft 2019-20 Preliminary BudgetPage 42



Saddle Creek Community Services District
 2019-20 Proposed BUDGET  WORKSHEET

6/15/2019

Budget
Projected 
Actuals                

6-30-2019

Proposed 
BUDGET

Proposed 
Change Proposed Change Notes

Equipment Replacement
      CO04 Shop/Grounds Equipment 67,700.00 65,667.00 0.00 (67,700.00)

         24' Flat Bed Trailer w/Tail gate 0.00 0.00 

         Radar Unit 6,800.00 0.00 0.00 (6,800.00)

         Spray Rig 0.00 0.00 

         John Deer Tractor - to replace old C&C tractor 0.00 0.00 
         Equipment Storage Car Port 12,000.00 0.00 (12,000.00)

Total Equipment Replacement  $          86,500.00  $         77,272.00  $                  -    $       (86,500.00)

Capital Projects
         OE53-2 Landscape Inprovements 7,915.50 0.00 0.00 

         OE53-1 Landscape Design/Survey 25,875.00 11,884.80 0.00 (25,875.00)

Total Landscape Project  $          25,875.00 11,884.80  $                  -    $       (25,875.00)

        OE51-4 Road Improvements 724,063.00 718,875.00 207,077.53 (516,985.47)

        OE51-1 Road Project Design & Constr Mgmt 56,762.00 57,307.00 36,543.09 (20,218.91)

        OE51-2 Road Project Administration (SCCSD) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

        OE51-3 Road Improvement Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 

  Office Building Paint 10,437.00 10,437.00 

  Office Building Siding and Trim 12,000.00 12,000.00 
Total Road Improvement Project  $        780,825.00 776,182.00  $   266,057.62  $     (514,767.38)

Total Capital Projects  $        806,700.00  $       788,066.80  $   266,057.62  $     (540,642.38)

Debt Service
      OE20 John Deere Financing 16,100.00 21,285.02 16,028.52 (71.48) Per amortization schedule
      OE21 John Deere Financing 12,300.00 0.00 12,615.60 24,915.60 Per amortization schedule
     Series 2018 Install Pymts (Road Improv Loan) 83,800.00 83,745.00 83,745.26 (54.74) Per amortization schedule

Total Debt Service  $        112,200.00  $       105,030.02  $   112,389.38  $        24,789.38 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $     1,780,700.00  $   1,750,634.44  $1,219,647.00  $     (536,453.00)

6/15/2019 3 of 4 Draft 2019-20 Preliminary BudgetPage 43



Saddle Creek Community Services District
 2019-20 Proposed BUDGET  WORKSHEET

6/15/2019

Budget
Projected 
Actuals                

6-30-2019

Proposed 
BUDGET

Proposed 
Change Proposed Change Notes

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
       New Tractor Lease/ purchase   55,000.00 55,000.00 0.00 (55,000.00)

       Road Loan Draw down 700,000.00 700,000.00 0.00 (700,000.00)
       Equipment Replacement Reserve (10,500.00) (756.86) (46,550.00) (36,050.00) Per approved Schedule

 $        744,500.00  $      754,243.14  $    (46,550.00)  $     (791,050.00)

Excess of revenues over expenditures  $                      -    $                     -    $                  -    $       (24,600.00)

6/15/2019 4 of 4 Draft 2019-20 Preliminary BudgetPage 44



SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2019/20 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
              
 

WHEREAS, the Saddle Creek Community Services District desires to manage its fiscal affairs 
according to an adopted budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with California Government Code Section 61110 et seq the Board of 

Directors desires to adopt a Preliminary Budget for the 2019/20 Fiscal Year, effective July 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the draft Fiscal Year 2019/20 Budget at a public meeting 

held on May 28, 2019, and provided direction to management in preparation of the Preliminary budget 
currently under consideration; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District will consider the adoption of the Final Fiscal Year 2019/20 Budget 

prior to September 1, 2018; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the District Board of Directors that: 

1. The Preliminary 2019/20 Fiscal Year Budget is hereby approved and expenditures contained therein 
authorized in accordance with District policy; and 

2. A Public Hearing is hereby called on July 16, 2019 to consider public input and comments on the 
Final Fiscal Year 2019/20 Budget prior to its adoption; and 

3. The General Manager shall publish the Notice of Public Hearing as required by law; and 

4. The General Manager shall prepare the Final Fiscal Year 2019/20 Budget. 
 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Saddle 
Creek Community Services District on June 18, 2019, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
 
NOES: 

 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 

 
______________________________________ 

Darlene DeBaldo, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Peter Kampa, Board Secretary 

 

Page 45



 
 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

 

I, Peter J. Kampa, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of Directors of the 
Saddle Creek Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly 
passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community 
Services District, duly called and held on June 18, 2019. 

 
DATED: ____________________. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 46



LOAN AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE
ENTER VALUES LOAN SUMMARY

$1,536,429.40 $183,812.40
3.40% 10

10 1
1 $0.00

7/1/2020 $301,694.59

$0.00 LENDER NAME

PMT 
NO PAYMENT DATE BEGINNING 

BALANCE
SCHEDULE

D PAYMENT
EXTRA 

PAYMENT
TOTAL 

PAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST ENDING 
BALANCE

CUMULATIVE 
INTEREST

1 7/1/2020 $1,536,429.40 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $131,573.80 $52,238.60 ############## $52,238.60
2 8/1/2020 $1,404,855.60 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $136,047.31 $47,765.09 ############## $100,003.69
3 9/1/2020 $1,268,808.29 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $140,672.92 $43,139.48 ############## $143,143.17
4 10/1/2020 $1,128,135.38 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $145,455.80 $38,356.60 $982,679.58 $181,499.77
5 11/1/2020 $982,679.58 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $150,401.29 $33,411.11 $832,278.29 $214,910.88
6 12/1/2020 $832,278.29 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $155,514.94 $28,297.46 $676,763.35 $243,208.34
7 1/1/2021 $676,763.35 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $160,802.44 $23,009.95 $515,960.90 $266,218.30
8 2/1/2021 $515,960.90 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $166,269.73 $17,542.67 $349,691.18 $283,760.97
9 3/1/2021 $349,691.18 $183,812.40 $0.00 $183,812.40 $171,922.90 $11,889.50 $177,768.28 $295,650.47
10 4/1/2021 $177,768.28 $183,812.40 $0.00 $177,768.28 $171,724.16 $6,044.12 $0.00 $301,694.59

Optional extra payments

Scheduled payment
Scheduled number of payments
Actual number of payments
Total early payments
Total interest

Loan amount
Annual interest rate
Loan period in years
Number of payments per year
Start date of loan

Page 47



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Special Meeting of June 18, 2019 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
e) Consideration of draft terms and conditions of an Memorandum of Agreement/Understanding 
with CV Partners, Inc. regarding equipment and property donations, joint operating expenses, 
community common area maintenance responsibilities, utility costs and related expenses 
 

Recommended Motion 
I move to place this matter, negotiation of an Memorandum of Agreement with CV Partners, Inc on the July 
2019 board agenda for discussion of real property negotiations in closed session.   

Background 
As you are aware, the District had many “handshake” agreements with Castle & Cooke, the prior owner of the 
Saddle Creek development and resort.  The agreements spanned from commitments by C&C to make 
improvements or repairs to roads and infrastructure, to the loaning of tools and facilities, meeting space, and 
supplies.  Attached hereto are items and issues currently being discussed.  Ultimately, both CV Partners and 
SCCSD wish to draft an Memorandum of Agreement (MOA/MOU) to reflect our positions on these and other 
matters.   
 
This agenda item is intended to be purely informational regarding the items being discussed between SCCSD 
and CV Partners, Inc.   Any formal discussion among the Board in the form of negotiation should be conducted 
in closed session between only the Board and management, for obvious reasons.  At this time, we believe it 
would be beneficial to hear from CV Partners representatives in public, and the public in general regarding 
their thoughts and concerns related to these long standing matters.  
 
Again, specific feedback in terms of negotiation should not be given in open session.      
  
 

Page 48



Saddle Creek CSD/CV Partners 
Working Draft MOU Terms and Conditions, Version 1 
March 27, 2019 

 
1. CSD office property/CCWD lease 

a. CSD to pay proportional share of lease cost 

b. Propose amount based on number of employees 

2. Office Building and Equipment ownership  

a. CV to donate building trailer, two tractors and water truck to CSD  

i. CSD to Water street trees on CV properties and culdesacs where no irrigation 
exists 

ii. CSD to provide water truck for fire prevention/suppression purposes 
iii. Determine value of trailer and equipment  for CV tax purposes 

b. CSD to pay proportional share of water and power bills for building based on # of 
employees 

c. CSD to reimburse CV for fuel costs related to Mosquito abatement, general common 
area maintenance, storm drains 

3. Gate operations and location  

a. CV funds gate attendant as desired with gate closed during off hours 

b. CSD owns the physical building and ROW 

c. CSD pays electrical, water and sewer, phone for the building 

d. CV to consider gate relocation, at their expense at future date to provide unfettered 
access to commercial 

4. Construction gate ownership and operation 

a. CV owns equipment, provides power and phone cost 

b. CSD operates and manages access and maintenance 

c. To be improved to CSD standards and dedicated for ownership in future; or eliminated if 
alternate access provided in future development 

5. Water Meters and Accounts 

a. All common area water meters in the name of CV and paid by them to keep community 
watered and looking saleable 

b. Work cooperatively to transfer ownership of private irrigation and landscape areas to 
appropriate property owner(s) 

c. CSD to continue to maintain common areas as currently configured 

i. Site plan to be developed depicting areas 

Page 49



d. CSD funds and provides responsible operation and maintenance of irrigation system and 
landscape 

e. CSD continues to pay partial share of cost on irrigation meter serving Saddle Creek 2; 
which is in their name 

6. Stormwater management – CSD responsible for DI, culverts and related infrastructure. 

a. CV responsible for stormwater management outside of road ROW 

b. Standards on culvert exit to be modified for future projects to avoid erosion 

c. CV to assist in troubleshooting and implementing a remedy for odor on occurring 
Rockridge, and to be responsible for pond improvements if determined 
necessary/responsible for odor 

7. Wetlands and 404 Permit Management –  

a. 404 Permit, Compliance Administration is CSD responsibility 

b. CV to provide pond maintenance records, water quality results  

c. Maintenance and Inspection Plan to be developed collaboratively between CSD and CV 
regarding operating responsibility 

i. General inspection provided by CSD 

ii. Improvements and major maintenance provided by CV under CSD guidance 

d. CV to maintain and comply with NPDES General Permit currently in place in Golf Resort 
name (Aquatic Pesticides) 

i. Resort owns wetland property and permit responsibility 

e. CSD monitors and enforces pond water levels (water supplied/paid from GC contract 
with CCWD); see Roger Pito wetlands report 2016 

8. Wildlife habitat easements 

a. CSD responsible for administration/encroachment under deed restriction 

b. CSD performs cleaning, weed management and mowing 

i. Fee for service charged to those who either do not maintain or contract with 
CSD 

9. Operation of roads 

a. Roads maintenance the responsibility of CSD 

i. Encroachment permit may be required for heavy construction equipment/work  

b. CV to assist financially when road improvement priorities/work scope are adjusted to 
suit development/sales needs 

c. CSD to review road maintenance plans and priorities with CV 

10. Common area maintenance 

a. CSD pays electricity for irrigation timers 

b. CSD Operates and maintains irrigation 

Page 50



c. CSD Maintains Landscaping 

d. CV pays for water 

e. CV to assist financially when landscape improvement priorities/work scope are adjusted 
to suit development/sales needs 

11. Open space parcels  

a. CV pays water and power for irrigation 

b. CSD maintains irrigation and landscape 

 
 
 

Page 51


	Meeting Agenda June 18, 2019
	Saddle Creek Community Services District
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
	1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA
	6. CONSENT CALENDAR
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
	8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:


	Item 6b, Treasurer's Report
	Item 6b, Credit Card Transactions
	Item 7b, Fee Schedule
	Sheet1

	Item 7c, Staff Report Road Plan
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS


	Item 7c, FINAL DRAFT 2019 Five Year Capital Improvement Program for Saddle Creek CSD Roadways
	Item 7d, Budget Adoption Staff Report, revised
	Recommended Motion
	Background

	Item 7D, Draft 2019-20 Preliminary Budget
	1750

	Item 7D Resolution Adopting FY19-20 Preliminary Budget
	CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

	Item 7d, Budget Supporting Potential Loan Schedule
	Loan Schedule

	Item 7e, Staff Report CV Partners MOA
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS


	Item 7e, CV Development MOU Draft Discussion Points
	Saddle Creek CSD/CV Partners
	Working Draft MOU Terms and Conditions, Version 1


	Item 6a, Meeting Minutes_MAY 2019.pdf
	Saddle Creek Community Services District
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
	1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA
	6. CONSENT CALENDAR
	7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
	8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS:





